

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SURVEYING SERVICES FOR

2023 LEGAL SURVEYS

PROPOSAL CALL: July 12, 2023

PROPOSALS DUE: August 2, 2023 and 5:00 pm EST (Iqaluit)

2023-RFP-058





TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	PROJECT OVERVIEW	4
1.1	Background	4
1.2	Definitions	4
1.3	Project Scope	6
2.	INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPONENTS	6
2.1	Submission	6
2.2	Inquiries	7
2.3	Addenda	7
2.4	Proponent Requirements	7
2.5	Opening of the Proposals	7
2.6	Not used	7
2.7	Validity of Offer	7
2.8	Intended RFP Process Schedule	8
3.	PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS	8
3.1	Technical Submission Requirements	8
3.2	Financial Submission Requirements	9
4.	EVALUATION	10
4.1	Evaluation Committee	10
4.2	Evaluation Stages	10
4.3	Mandatory Requirements	11
4.4	Rejection of Unacceptable Proposals	12
4.5	Evaluation Criteria	12
5.	TERMS AND GENERAL CONDITIONS	13
5.1	Terms and Conditions	13
5.2	No Collusion	14
5.3	Conflict of Interest	14
5.4	Accuracy of Information	15
5.5	Confidentiality	15
5.6	Working Language	15
5.7	Terms of Payment	15
5.8	Cash Flow Expenditure Forecast	16
5.9	WSIB/ WSCC Certificate	16





5.10	Health and Safety	16
5.11	Project Status Reporting	16
5.12	Consultant Performance Evaluation Reporting	17
6.	CONSULTANT SCOPE OF WORK	17
APPE	ENDIX A – COST SUBMISSION FORM	19
APPE	ENDIX B – SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS	21
APPE	ENDIX C – CITY OF IQALUIT SERVICES AGREEMENT	23
APPE	ENDIX D – SIGNING SHEET	30





1. PROJECT OVERVIEW

The City is seeking to retain a Consultant to provide technical expertise for the completion of legal surveys.

In alignment with the City's of Iqaluit's Strategic Plan Goal 6: to enhance our economic environment and attract investment, land surveys are required when creating new lots, consolidating lots, adjusting lot lines, and when creating a road parcel or an easement. This enables the City to accommodate new development, new roads, and to protect City infrastructure.

The City invites Proponants to submit Proposals for the above-referenced Project in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Request for Proposal document.

1.1 Background

1.1.1 Location

Iqaluit is the capital of the Nunavut Territory and is located at the south end of Baffin Island near the end of Frobisher Bay (63°45'N latitude and 68°31'W longitude). Access to Iqaluit is provided by regular scheduled commercial aircraft year-round, snowmobile trails from other Baffin Island communities in the winter, and sealift from the port of Montreal and Valleyfield in the summer.

1.1.2 Geology and Terrain

Iqaluit's location is above the tree line and within the permafrost zone of Canada. The region generally consists of glacially scoured igneous/ metamorphic terrain. In some locations, a thin layer of organic material is found.

1.1.3 Climate

Iqaluit has an Arctic climate with an average January temperature of -21.5°C and July average temperature of 8°C. The annual precipitation is made up of 19.2 cm of rainfall and 255.0 cm of snowfall for a total of 43.0 cm of precipitation. The prevailing winds are northwest at 16.7 km/hr.

1.2 Definitions

The following terms and definitions listed shall apply within this RFP:

City/ Client/ Owner means the Municipal Corporation of the City;

means the entity as defined in the Supplementary Conditions, which may be the same entity as the

City as defined herein.

City Representative means the individual, assigned to the Project, who

will be representing the City.

City Website means www.igaluit.ca.





Closing Time means the time set out in Section 2.8 of this RFP.

Contractor means the entity who will be providing construction

services to perform the work.

Construction Contract means the executed agreement between the City

and the Contractor for the work.

Evaluation Committee means a committee appointed by the City in order

to evaluate all submitted proposals in order to

determine a preferred proponent.

Preferred Proponent means the company or firm that has been selected

by the City's Evaluation Committee and who will initially discuss the contract arrangements based upon acceptance of the proponent's proposal.

Consultant means the Consultant who will provide the

technical and professional services defined in the

Request for Proposal.

Professional Services means the technical and professional services to

be provided by the Consultant for this contract.

Project means 2023 Legal Surveys

Project Manager means the Project Manager assigned to the Project

by the City.

Project Team means the group of people which includes the City

Representative, the Project Manager, the Discipline Design Leaders, and any other person invited from time to time by the City Representative of the

Project Manager.

Proponent means a company or firm intending to submit a

Proposal and from whom a Proposal submission

was received.

Proposal means the document submitted in response to the

Request for Proposal.

This contract means the Consultant contract for which this

Request for Proposal is issued.

User group means the City or the users of the facility for which

the City is responsible.





1.3 Project Scope

The proponent will conduct the following legal surveys as described below:

1. SK 18-008 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)19-002]

Neighbourhood: West 40; Project: Akilliq Drive subdivision for City infrastructure and easement

2. SK 19-004 a & b OR [IQAL-235(40-2)19-013]

Neighbourhood: North 40; Project: Easement for Ulu Lane sewer line

3. SK 23-001 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)23-001]

Neighbourhood: North 40; Project: Qaqqamiut Road subdivision for municipal vehicle impound lot

4. SK 23-002 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)23-002]

Neighbourhood: North 40; Project: 1560 Sivumugiaq Street subdivision for lot and road parcel

5. SK 23-005 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)23-005]*

Neighbourhood: North 40, Project: Ungalliqpaat Crescent subdivision for lot and drainage

The surveys should be conducted in accordance with all relevant municipal, territorial, and federal standards, regulations, guidelines, and best practices, including the National standards for the Survey of Canada Lands. This work includes conducting the field work in addition to submitting the provisional plans to the Land Titles Office for registration.

2. INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPONENTS

2.1 Submission

Proponents must submit their proposals by electronic submission (PDF format), through MERX before the time and date specified in Section 2.8. MERX can be accessed via the following website link – https://www.merx.com/. Proponents must address proposals to:

City of Iqaluit – Planning planning@iqaluit.ca

Proponents will be required to submit a Technical and Financial Submission as part of their offer, in separate files. Files should be labeled as follows:

Technical Submission: "Iqaluit Surveys 2023 RFP - Proponent Name"

Financial Submission: "Igaluit Surveys 2023 RFP (financial) – Proponent Name"

It is the Proponent's responsibility to confirm successful submission of the proposal to MERX prior to the deadline.

The final decision on whether to accept late Proposals is at the City's discretion.





2.2 Inquiries

All inquiries concerning this RFP are to be directed by email only to:

Samantha Toffolo City of Iqaluit – Contract Planner samantha@northernfutures.ca

To ensure consistency and fairness to all Proponents, all firms who have received the RFP will receive information with respect to significant inquiries in the form of written addenda or clarifications. Verbal explanations or instructions will not be binding.

The deadline for submitting inquiries will be on local Iqaluit time specified in Section 2.8 of this RFP.

2.3 Addenda

If it is determined that an amendment is required to this RFP, a written addendum will be posted via Merx and the City's website. It is the Proponents responsibility to check Merx and the City's website to confirm whether an addendum has been posted. The only way this RFP may be added to or amended in any way is by a formal written addendum. No other communication whether written or oral from any person will affect or modify the terms of this RFP or may be relied upon by any Proponent.

The City may amend, supplement, or otherwise modify this RFP at any time and from time to time prior to the Proposal submission date, only by written addenda.

2.4 Proponent Requirements

The successful Proponent must have a valid City of Iqaluit Business License prior to commencement of the Project. The Preferred Proponent shall apply for a license immediately upon notification of award, should they not hold a valid license.

2.5 Opening of the Proposals

There will be no public opening of the Proposals.

2.6 Not used.

Nil.

2.7 Validity of Offer

The proposals shall remain open for acceptance for a period of not less than sixty (60) calendar days from the closing date of this Request for Proposal.





2.8 Intended RFP Process Schedule

The City estimates the schedule for the Request for Proposal process milestones will be as follows:

Table A - RFP Process Schedule

Milestone	Date
Issue RFP	July 12, 2023
Last Day for Proponent Questions	July 26, 2023
RFP Closes – Submission Deadline	Aug 2, 2023
Contract Award	August 23, 2023
Project Start/Kick-Off Meeting	August 28, 2023

3. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

Proponent submissions should be prepared in sections, with the content of each section as specified below. Concise submissions which address the section requirements are encouraged. Where a maximum number of pages are specified, each page is based on a single side of an 8 ½ x 11 sheet, with text no smaller than size 11 Arial font. There are no page limits or restrictions to the financial submission.

The technical submission must not have any financial details included. If aspects of the financial offer are included in the technical submission, the City may choose to disqualify the Proponent.

3.1 Technical Submission Requirements

3.1.1 Section A – Understanding of the Project (**10 points**)

Provide a written statement demonstrating the Proponent's understanding of:

- Scope of Work of the overall Project
- Goals and objectives of this Project

3.1.2 Section B – Work Plan & Schedule (**20 points**)

Provide a work plan detailing how you will complete the work within the timeframe provided within this Request for Proposal.

• Schedule with major milestones indicated, i.e. commencement of fieldwork and completion of plan preparation ready for registration





Work plan with breakdown of tasks

3.1.3 <u>Section C – Qualifications and Experience</u> (**30 points**)

Describe the qualifications of your firm and of the team member or members undertaking this work. The work shall be done in accordance to all relevant municipal, territorial, and federal standards, regulations, guidelines, and best practices, including the National standards for the Survey of Canada Lands. Please indicate your qualifications to adhere to these requirements and the following:

- Prior experience working with/for a municipality or territory and/or provincial government agency;
- o Prior experience working in Nunavut or northern communities;
- Licensing credentials

3.1.7 Section D – Mandatory Submission Requirements (pass/fail)

Provide all mandatory requirements, as identified in Section 4.3. Proponents who fail to submit mandatory items will not proceed to the next phase of evaluation.

3.2 Financial Submission Requirements

3.2.1 Consultant's Professional Fees (**40 points**)

Submit a completed Cost Submission Form that includes total survey costs with estimated breakdown per survey area (for City budgeting purposes) and total expenses. Cost Submission Form included in Appendix A. Please include a Consultant's corresponding level of effort fee table, complete with positions, hours, rates, and fee breakdown, based on the work being requested under this RFP for a Fixed Fee.

The fee table must also include a breakdown on expenses/ disbursements, based on the requirements described in the Terms of Reference. The Proponent must use per diem rates established by the National Joint Council for the Territory of Nunavut. The Proponent will be responsible for transportation requirements and must include this in their fee proposal for expenses/ disbursements.

The completed Cost Submission Form and level of effort fee table shall form part of the contract document to be used between the City and the Preferred Proponent. The rates included in the fee table will be used in the event the scope of work is changed and provisions of the contract value to be changed during the project period.

Note: Proponent fees and staff charge rates shall include all miscellaneous project expenses such as printing, copying, plotting, film, presentation materials, courier, computers, field equipment, cell phones, office supplies etc. The City will not pay for any flat rate administration charges on top of invoices. Proponent to assume 2-week turnaround times for all submittals to the City with these considered as hold points and any design work progressed during this time is at the Proponents risk. **Any other**





financial qualifications which are not priced within the proposal may be subject to the bidder being disqualified.

Additional fees for annual inflation will not be entertained. Proponent to ensure annual staff rates presented ion Appendix A cover any escalation and inflation costs.

The Financial Submission will not be opened until after the evaluation of the technical submission has been completed and satisfied per the required criteria.

4. EVALUATION

4.1 Evaluation Committee

The evaluation of Proposals will be undertaken by an Evaluation Committee appointed by the City. The Evaluation Committee may consult with technical, financial, and other advisors, as the Evaluation Committee, in its sole discretion, may decide. The Evaluation Committee will reach a consensus through discussions internal to the Committee.

4.2 Evaluation Stages

Proposals will be evaluated in four stages:

4.2.1 Evaluation of Mandatory Criteria

Proposals that do not meet the mandatory criteria will be rejected (Refer to Section 4.3 below).

4.2.2 Technical Evaluation – Total Value 60 Points

Subject to the Evaluation Committee's right to reject an unacceptable Proposal under Section 4.4, the Evaluation Committee will evaluate and score the Proposal information provided using Table 2 in Section 4.5 as a guide to assign scores. For each criterion, each Proposal will be assessed, and points will be awarded on the basis of the extent to which the requirements of the Request for Proposal documents are satisfied, and the comparative merit of the individual Proposal as compared to other Proposals.

Proposals will be ranked from highest to lowest in terms of meeting the City's requirements and containing technical merit. Proponents are required to achieve a minimum score of 70% (42/60 points) on the Technical Evaluation, in order to qualify for review of the Financial Submission.

Technical scores will be computed based on each category weighting multiplied by a rating value as follows:

Rating Key:

1 = Does Not Meet Basic Criteria

2 = Partially Meets Basic Criteria

3 = Meets Basic Criteria





4 = Exceeds Basic Criteria

5 = Significantly Exceeds Basic Criteria

An evaluation with rating values of 2 or less may be subject to disqualification at the City's discretion.

The City may request to interview any of the technically qualified firms if further clarifications are required.

4.2.3 Financial Evaluation – Total Value 40 Points

Financial evaluation of cost criteria will be conducted after evaluation of the technical criteria and reference checks.

A total of 40 points will be awarded on the basis of the Fixed fee Proposal, and the distribution of fees to each phase of the Project.

The points for price will be awarded as follows:

The score for the Financial Submission will be in accordance with the following formula:

Note: The costs are initially assessed to determine if they represent a viable level of funding for the workload. Those that are deemed unviable may be rejected. For example, if in the City's experience, the costs represent a level of staffing that is known to be too low to accomplish the work, the proposal may be rejected on that basis. Conversely, if in the City's experience, the costs represent a level of staffing that far exceeds the workload, then the proposal may be rejected.

4.2.4 Selection

The Evaluation Committee will rank the Proponents, using the combined Technical and Financial score, from which it will select the Preferred Proponent. The Preferred Proponent's Proposal will be recommended to the City for the award of a contract for Consultant services based on the Proponents standing in the evaluation review process.

4.3 Mandatory Requirements

As indicated in Section 1 of this Request for Proposal, Proponents may be individual firms, or consortia of firms. In order for Proponent's Proposals to be considered for further evaluation they must demonstrate in their Proposals that the following mandatory requirements can be met.





Proponents must:

- 1. Provide evidence satisfactory to City from the Proponent's insurer that the Proponent is able to obtain the insurance coverage as specified in APPENDIX C City's Standard Service Agreement.
- 2. Proponent's latest valid WSCC/ WSIB Certificate of Clearance to be submitted within 30 days of award.
- 3. Include a completed sign-off of Proposal submission, as per the requirements in APPENDIX D

4.4 Rejection of Unacceptable Proposals

The Evaluation Committee may at any time reject a Proposal without completing a full evaluation (including a Proposal from a Proponent that complies with the Mandatory Requirements), if in the judgment of the Evaluation Committee further consideration of the Proposal would not be acceptable as the basis for a contract considering the evaluation criteria indicated in Section 4.5 below.

The City reserves the right without liability, cost, or penalty, in its sole discretion to disqualify any Proposal before its full evaluation if the Proposal reveals a conflict of interest, incorrect information, or misrepresentation by the Proponent of any information provided in its Proposal. The City further reserves the right without liability, cost, or penalty, in its sole discretion to disqualify any Proposal where there is evidence that the Proponent, its employees, agents or representatives colluded with one or more other Proponents or any of their respective employees, agents or representatives in the preparation of the Proposal.

4.5 Evaluation Criteria

The Evaluation Committee will evaluate eligible Proposals to determine the Proposal which best meets the needs of the City, using the weighting criteria indicated in Table B below as a guideline.

Table B - RFP Evaluation Criteria

EVALUATION CRITERIA	WEIGHTING
Technical Submission	
Section A – Understanding of the Project	10 points
Section B – Work Plan & Schedule	20 points
Section E – Qualifications and Experience	30 points
Technical Score Sub-Total:	60 points
Financial Submission	
Consultant Fees – Cost Submission Form	40 points





Financial Score Sub-Total:	40 points
Total RFP Evaluation Score:	100 points

5. TERMS AND GENERAL CONDITIONS

5.1 Terms and Conditions

- 5.1.1 Submission of a Proposal constitutes acknowledgement that the Proponent has read and agrees to be bound by all the terms and conditions of this Request for Proposal.
- 5.1.2 The City will not make any payments for the preparation of a response to this Request for Proposal. All costs incurred by a Proponent will be borne by the Proponent.
- 5.1.3 This is not an offer. The City does not, by virtue of this Proposal call, commit to an award of this Proposal, nor does it limit itself to accepting the lowest price or any Proposal submitted, but reserves the right to award this Proposal in any manner deemed to be in the City's best interest.
- 5.1.4 Proponents may not amend their proposal after the closing date and time but may withdraw their proposal at any time prior to acceptance by the City and issuing a Letter of Intent.
- 5.1.5 The City has the right to cancel this Request for Proposal at any time and to reissue it for any reason whatsoever, without incurring any liability and no Proponent will have any claim against the City as a result of the cancellation or reissuing of the Request for Proposal.
- 5.1.6 The City will not be responsible for any Proposal that does not indicate the Request for Proposal reference, and the Proponent's name.
- 5.1.7 The City will not be responsible for any Proposal that is delivered to any address or in any manner other than that provided in Section 2.1 of this Request for Proposal.
- 5.1.8 If a contract is to be awarded as a result of this Request for Proposal, it will be awarded to the Proponent whose Proposal for each service, in the City's opinion, provides the best potential value to the City and is capable in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements and has the integrity and reliability to assure performance of the contract obligations.
- 5.1.9 If the City decides to award a contract based on a submission received in response to this Request for Proposal, the Successful Proponent will be notified of the intent to award in writing, and the subsequent execution of a written agreement shall constitute the making of a Contract. Proponents will not acquire any legal or equitable rights or privileges whatsoever until a Contract is signed by both parties. In the event of any inconsistency between this Request for Proposal, and any ensuing contract, the contract shall govern.





- 5.1.10 The contract will be in the form of the City's standard "City of Iqaluit Services Agreement" and it will contain the relevant provisions of this Request for Proposal, the accepted Proposal as well as such other terms as may be mutually agreed upon, whether arising from the accepted Proposal or as a result of any negotiations prior or subsequent thereto. The City reserves the right to negotiate modifications with any Proponent who has submitted a Proposal.
- 5.1.11 A copy of the Services Agreement is included as APPENDIX 'C'.
- 5.1.12 Any amendment made by the City to the Request for Proposal will be issued in writing and sent to all who have received the documents.
- 5.1.13 An Evaluation Committee will review each Proposal. The City reserves the exclusive right to determine the qualitative aspects of all Proposals relative to the evaluation criteria.
- 5.1.14 Proposals will be evaluated as soon as practicable after the closing time. No detail of any Proposal will be made public except the names of all parties submitting Proposals.
- 5.1.15 The proposal and accompanying documentation submitted by the proponents are the property of the City and will not be returned.
- 5.1.16 Proponents must acknowledge receipt of any addenda issued by the City in their Proposal.
- 5.1.17 Proponents shall disclose in its Proposal any actual or potential conflicts of interest and existing business relationships it may have with the City, its elected or appointed officials or employees. The City may rely on such disclosure.
- 5.1.18 Proponents and their agents will not contact any member of the City Council, City Staff or City Consultants with respect to this Request for Proposal, other than the City Representative named in section 2.2, at any time prior to the award of a contract or the cancellation of this Request for Proposal.

5.2 No Collusion

By submitting a Proposal, the Proponent, and each firm, corporation or individual member associated with the Proponent's Proposal submission, represents, and confirms to the City, with the knowledge and intention that the City may rely on such representation and confirmation, that its Proposal has been prepared without collision or fraud, and in fair competition with Proposals from other Proponents. Include confirmation of this under Item 3.1.7 of the Proposal submission.

5.3 Conflict of Interest

Proponents shall disclose any potential conflicts of interest and existing business relationships they may have with the City, its elected officials or employees, or any known participants in the Project. The City may rely on such disclosure.





Under Item 3.1.7 of the Proposal submission, include confirmation of the Proponent's agreement to conform to the conflict-of-interest requirements and disclosures as indicated in Supplementary Conditions SC2 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

5.4 Accuracy of Information

While the City has used considerable efforts to ensure an accurate representation of information in the Request for Proposal, the information contained in this Request for Proposal is supplied solely as a guideline for Proponents. The City gives no representation whatsoever as to the accuracy or completeness of any of the information set out in this Request for Proposal, or any other background or reference information or documents prepared by third parties and made available to Proponents. Proponents will make an independent assessment of the accuracy and completeness of such information and will have no claim whatsoever against the City or its representatives, agents, consultants, and advisors, with respect to such information.

5.5 Confidentiality

Proponents shall treat all information received through this Request for Proposal process and subsequent contract award as confidential and will not disclose such information to any person except with the prior written consent of the City.

Under Item 3.1.7 of the Proposal submission, include confirmation of the Proponent's agreement to conform to the confidentiality requirements as indicated in Supplementary Conditions SC1 – CONFIDENTIALITY. The Consultant shall ensure that all drawings, specifications, and other documentation prepared for the Project and designated as confidential by the Owner, are prominently stamped on each page or sheet of each document with the word "CONFIDENTIAL" prior to release for construction bidding purposes or during the course of the Work.

5.6 Working Language

All Proposals must be written in English.

5.7 Terms of Payment

The Proponent shall be reimbursed monthly for works completed for each service provided. Invoices are to be submitted on a monthly basis, and shall include:

- 1. the project title.
- 2. the service contract number.
- 3. a description of the work completed.
- 4. billing summary, which includes the tasks as set forth in the costing submission, the proposed costs, cost to date, percentage invoiced to date, and the percentage of work completed to date for each task.
- 5. backup for all disbursements (time sheets may be requested).

The monthly invoice should be reviewed as a draft by the Consultant and the Project Manager in order to validate the fee and services being claimed. The Proponent is to





update the invoice (as required), as per comments/ feedback received from the Project Manager. The Project Manager and Proponent are to determine at the Project Kick-Off meeting the date which draft monthly invoices are to be reviewed.

The final invoice is to be submitted to the Project Manager for processing with the City. Invoices that are issued directly to the City's Accounts Payable Department will not be processed. Invoices must be submitted for payment by the 15th of every month, for previous months work (e.g., invoice must be submitted by February 15th for work completed up to January 31st).

No payment will be made for the cost of work incurred to remedy errors or omissions for which the contractor is responsible. No additional invoicing will be accepted beyond what the City has agreed to as per the contract. At no time shall the contract upset limit be exceeded without prior written authorization from the City.

5.8 Cash Flow Expenditure Forecast

The Proponent is to submit a cash flow expenditure forecast identifying how the Proponent anticipates invoicing the City on a monthly process, based on the established schedule, and status of key deliverables. An update cash flow expenditure forecast is to be submitted with every monthly invoice including earned value reporting metrics and graph. Submit an initial cash flow expenditure forecast within ten (10) business days of contract award.

5.9 WSIB/ WSCC Certificate

Under Item 3.1.7 of the Proposal submission, include submission of the Proponent's latest WSIB or WSCC Certificate of Clearance (failure to submit a certificate or letter of exemption from coverage with the Proposal may result in disqualification of the Proposal). Proponents with no WSCC coverage must apply to the Government of Nunavut with 10 working days of starting operations.

5.10 Health and Safety

The successful Proponent shall provide the City a copy of its Health and Safety plan within 10 calendar days of execution of the contract for any field services or site investigations to be completed as part of this scope of work. The successful Proponent shall comply at all times with the City's health and safety requirements while working in Iqaluit.

5.11 Project Status Reporting

The Consultant will be required to provide monthly status reports, which must communicate the following: assignment status, work completed to date, work remaining, balances outstanding, schedule progress (baseline and approved changes), and financial status (original contract value, current contract value, % complete vs. % spent). The Consultant shall also include key high-level risks and





issues (including potential mitigations) that have the potential to affect the Consultant's scope of work or the Project's overall objectives.

5.12 Consultant Performance Evaluation Reporting

As part of The City's commitment to a continuous improvement process the successful Proponent's services will be evaluated on an annual basis and at project completion to ensure level of service is satisfactory and in line with Contractual commitments. The completed evaluation will be issued to the Consultant and a meeting will be arranged with the City to discuss any corrective actions required.

6. CONSULTANT SCOPE OF WORK

The following describes the Scope of Work for the project:

Undertake the completion of five legal surveys. For each of the surveys, the Preliminary Sketch Plan Approval letter from CGS is provided as an attachment. The surveying projects are summarized below:

1. SK 18-008 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)19-002]

Neighbourhood: West 40; Project: Akilliq Drive subdivision for City infrastructure and easement

- 2. SK 19-004 a & b OR [IQAL-235(40-2)19-013]
 - Neighbourhood: North 40; Project: Easement for Ulu Lane new sewer line
- 3. SK 23-001 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)23-001]
 - Neighbourhood: North 40; Project: Qaqqamiut Road subdivision for municipal vehicle impound lot
- 4. SK 23-002 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)23-002]
 - Neighbourhood: North 40; Project: 1560 Sivumugiaq Street subdivision for lot and road parcel
- 5. SK 23-005 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)23-005]*
 - Neighbourhood: North 40, Project: Ungalliqpaat Crescent subdivision for lot and drainage

The work shall be carried out in accordance to all relevant municipal, territorial, and federal standards, regulations, guidelines, and best practices, including the National standards for the Survey of Canada Lands.

Work will include completing all legal survey work including the following:

- Project planning/pre-field work
 - o Initial meetings with the City for project orientation
 - Setting up for completion of the fieldwork
- Fieldwork
 - On-site conducting field data and all relevant work necessary for the completion of survey plans





- Ensure the City is notifyed in the event of any changes to the location of survey pins due to the presence of waterbodies or other landscape features
- Plan preparation
 - Draft provisional survey plans
 - Submit provisional survey plans to CGS for approval
 - Notify the City upon submission of the provisional survey plans and provide the City with a copy in PDF and CAD format
 - Register plans with the Land Titles Office and notify City upon registration OR, in cases where there are encumbrances on the land, the final survey plan will be provided to the City and the City will register the final survey plan

Legal surveys are required as a step in the transfer of commissioner's land to the City. The Proponent shall identify and carry out all survey requirements for the purpose of undergoing this process. The Proponent will be responsible for all materials labour and equipment required to execute the scope of work.

The Sketch Plan Approvals are provided as an attachment to this document.





APPENDIX A - COST SUBMISSION FORM

Proponent's Name:	·
Proponent's Address:	·
Proponent Email/ Telephone:	·
Provide the following cost break	down for the services detailed herein that the Proponent is proposing to

Provide the following cost breakdown for the services detailed herein that the Proponent is proposing to offer the City of Iqaluit. Proponent to include a fee breakdown for consulting fees and disbursements.

Table A1 Cost Submission Form

Item	Description	Qty	Unit	Unit Price	Total
1.1	Ongoing project management, meetings, consultations with the City of Iqaluit	1	LS	\$	\$
1.2	Estimated cost breakdown per survey area:				
	SK 18-008 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)19-002]	1	LS	\$	\$
	SK 19-004 a & b OR [IQAL-235(40-2)19-013]	1	LS	\$	\$
	SK 23-001 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)23-001]	1	LS	\$	\$
	SK 23-002 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)23-002]	1	LS	\$	\$
	SK 23-005 OR [IQAL-235(40-2)23-005]	1	LS	\$	\$
1.3	Overall project expenses – total not by area (incl. all travel, accommodations, disbursements, reporting)	1	LS	\$	\$
	COST SUE	BMISSION S	UMMA	RY	
	·	Sub-	Total:		\$
			GST:		\$
		TO	DTAL:		\$

Note: Estimated costs for disbursements (travel, accommodation, per diems) will be reimbursed based on actual cost with no allowance for mark-up.





Fees for changes to the work shall be as agreed upon prior to the commencement of services for the change as set out under the contract. For additional work, the proponent shall use the rates detailed below.

Table A2 Fee Table

POSITION	TEAM MEMBER Hourly Rates (\$/hr	

Consultant to add positions, as necessary. Each discipline shall provide names for each position, as necessary.

END OF APPENDIX A





APPENDIX B - SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

Amend the General Conditions as follows:

Add SC1 Confidentiality

SC 1 Confidentiality

- The Consultant and the Consultant's employees and sub-Consultants shall not use, copy, disclose or otherwise communicate and information not available to the general public that was gained by them in the course of their duties related to this Contract, except as is necessary in the proper discharge of those duties. This obligation survives the Contract.
- All information provided by the Consultant is subject to the disclosure and protection
 provisions of applicable freedom of information and privacy legislation. Such Act allows
 any person a right of access to records in the Client's custody or control, subject to
 limited and specific exceptions.

Add SC2 Conflicts of Interest

SC 2 Conflicts of Interest

The Consultant and the Consultant's employees:

- shall conduct their duties related to this Contract with impartiality and shall, if they
 exercise inspection or other discretionary authority over others in the course of those
 duties, disqualify themselves from dealing with anyone with whom a relationship
 between them could bring their impartiality into question;
- shall not influence, seek to influence, or otherwise take part in a decision of the Client, knowing that the decision might further their private interests. Any communication with the City's elected officials before contract award shall result in disqualification of the Proponent.
- 3. shall not accept any commission, discount, allowance, payment, gift, or other benefit that is connected, directly, or indirectly with the performance of their duties relating to this Contract, that causes, or would appear to cause, a conflict of interest, and
- 4. shall have no financial interest in the business of a third party that causes, or would appear to cause, a conflict of interest in connection with the performance of their duties related to this Contract, and if such financial interest is acquired during the term of this Contract, the Consultant shall promptly declare it to the Client.





Add SC3 Project History File

SC 3 Project History File

- All project documentation shall be considered deliverables and shall form the core of the Project History File. A project history file is to be submitted to the Client prior to project closeout. It is the Consultants responsibility to ensure that the requirements for all deliverables be applied to all subconsultants and vendors.
- 2. All supporting and originating data (calculations, graphs, data, pictures, drawings checks, tables, etc.) that are developed and incorporated into the deliverable documentation shall be included in Project history file.
- 3. All data collected as part of the Project and relating to the deliverables that have been organized into database tables and spreadsheets shall be included electronically as supporting data for the deliverable. This information will be incorporated into the project history file
- 4. The project history file will be submitted electronically in a logical file folder structure.

END OF APPENDIX B





APPENDIX C - CITY OF IQALUIT SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN: THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF IQALUIT

(hereinafter referred to as the "CITY OF IQALUIT")

OF THE FIRST PART

AND: CONSULTANT NAME.

(hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant")

OF THE SECOND PART

WHEREAS the CITY OF IQALUIT has requested the Consultant to provide engineering services for the <insert project name/ contract title>;

AND WHEREAS the Consultant has agreed to provide such services to the CITY OF IQALUIT in its proposal dated <insert proposal date>;

AND WHEREAS the CITY OF IQALUIT and the Consultant wish to set out the terms and conditions relating to the provision of such services;

THEREFORE the CITY OF IQALUIT and the Consultant agree as follows:

1. SERVICES AND PAYMENT

- 1.1 The Consultant agrees to provide to the CITY OF IQALUIT those services set out in the job description and scope of work provided on **<insert proposal date>**. A copy of the proposal is attached as Appendix "A".
- 1.2 The CITY OF IQALUIT agrees to pay for the services described above, a total amount not greater than <insert proposal amount>, for the provision of professional services based on the Proposal dated <insert proposal date>.

2. TERM

2.1. This Contract shall commence on the <insert contract start date> and terminates on the <insert contract termination date> unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Contract.

3. NOTICE AND ADDRESS





- 3.1 Any notice required to be given herein or any other communication required by this contract shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered, sent by facsimile, or posted by prepaid registered mail and shall be addressed as follows:
 - i) If, to the CITY OF IQALUIT:

Rod Mugford Acting Chief Administrative Officer City of Iqaluit P.O. Box 460 Iqaluit, NU XOA 0H0 Fax: 979-5653

Reference:

ii) If to the Consultant at:

<Insert Consultant Representative Name>
<Insert Consultant/ Company Name>
<Insert Address>

3.2 Every such notice and communication, if delivered by hand, shall be deemed to have been received on the date of delivery or if sent by prepaid registered mail shall be deemed to have been received on the seventh day after posting, or if by facsimile, 48 hours after the time of transmission, excluding from the calculation weekends and statutory holidays.

4. COMPLETE AGREEMENT

- 4.1 This Contract and its attachments constitute the complete Contract between the parties. Except as provided herein, it supersedes and shall take effect in substitution for all previous agreements. It is subject to change only by an instrument executed in writing by the City.
- 4.2 If this Contract arises from a request for proposals or tender call, the provisions of the request for proposals or tender call and the Consultant's bid or proposal submission are incorporated into this Contract and may be used to clarify, explain, or supplement this Contract, but shall not be used to contradict any express terms of this Contract.
- 4.3 In the event of a conflict between this Contract, the Consultant's bid or proposal submission, and the City's original tender bid instructions or Request for Proposals, the more recently prepared document shall govern to the extent of such inconsistency.

5. GENERAL TERMS

5.1 Any information obtained from or concerning any department of the CITY OF IQALUIT or clients of any department of the CITY OF IQALUIT, by the contractor, its agents, or employees in the performance of any contract shall be confidential. The Consultant shall take such steps as are necessary to ensure that any such information is not disclosed to any other person and shall maintain confidential and secure all material and information that is the property of the CITY OF IQALUIT and in the possession of or under the control of the Consultant. This clause survives the termination of this contract.





- 5.2 Time shall in every respect be of the essence. The Consultant shall deliver the services specified in the contract and according to the project schedule on costs. The CITY OF IQALUIT may grant reasonable extensions to the Consultant for delays, if the Consultant can show those delays were caused by circumstances beyond the control of the Consultant.
- 5.3 The Consultant is an independent Consultant with the CITY OF IQALUIT and nothing in this contract shall be construed or deemed to create the relationship of employee and employer or of principal and agent between the CITY OF IQALUIT and the Consultant. The Consultant is solely responsible for payments of all statutory deductions or contributions including but not limited to pension plans, unemployment insurance, income tax, workers' compensation, and the Nunavut Payroll Tax.
- 5.4 This contract shall be interpreted and governed in accordance with the laws of Nunavut and the laws of Canada as they apply in Nunavut.
- 5.5 No waiver by either party of any breach of any term, condition or covenant of this contract shall be effective unless the waiver is in writing and signed by both parties. A waiver, with respect to a specific breach, shall not affect any rights of the parties relating to other or future breaches.
- 5.6 The failure of either party at any time to require the performance of any provision or requirement of this contract shall not affect the right of that party to require the subsequent performance of that provision or requirement.
- 5.7 Title to any report, drawing, photograph, plan, specification, model, prototype, pattern, sample, design, logo, technical information, invention, method or process and all other property, work or materials which are produced by the Consultant in performing the contract or conceived, developed or first actually reduced to practice in performing the contract (herein called "the Property") shall vest in the CITY OF IQALUIT and the Consultant hereby absolutely assigns to the CITY OF IQALUIT the copyright in the property for the whole of the term of the copyright. The Consultant shall not be responsible for any loss or damage suffered by the City of Iqaluit or any third parties resulting from any unauthorized use or modification of the property, errors in transmission of the property, changes to the Property by others, the consequences of design defects due to the design of others, or defects in contract documents prepared by others, and the City of Iqaluit agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the Consultant harmless from and against all claims, demands, losses, damages, liability and costs associated therewith. Subject to the foregoing, the Property may be relied by the City of Iqaluit for design and construction work undertaken by other parties with respect to the Services provided that such parties verify the accuracy and completeness of the Property to their satisfaction.
- 5.8 It is intended that all provisions of this agreement shall be fully binding and effective between the parties, but in the event that any particular provision or provisions or a part of one is found to be void, voidable or unenforceable for any reason whatever, then the remainder of the agreement shall be interpreted as if such provision, provisions, or part thereof, had not been included.
- 5.9 This contract may be extended by the written consent of the parties.
- 5.10 The CITY OF IQALUIT may delegate any of its authority and undertaking pursuant to this contract to any employee or contractor the CITY OF IQALUIT by notice in writing to the Consultant.
- 5.11 This contract shall ensure to the benefit of and be binding on the respective administrators, successors, and assignment of each of the parties hereto.





6. CONSULTANT RESPONSIBILITIES

- 6.1 The Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless, the CITY OF IQALUIT, its officers, employees, servants, and agents from and against all claims, actions, causes of action, demands, losses, costs, damages, expenses, suits, or other proceedings by whomsoever made, brought, or prosecuted in any manner based upon or related to the negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the Consultant under this contract.
- 6.2 The Consultant shall be liable to the CITY OF IQALUIT for any loss or damage to property or equipment that is supplied to or placed in the care, custody, or control of the Consultant for use in connection with the contract if such loss or damage is attributable to the negligence or deliberate acts of the Consultant or its employees or agents.
- 6.3 If, in the opinion of the CITY OF IQALUIT acting reasonably, the Consultant is in default in respect of any obligation of the Consultant hereunder, the CITY OF IQALUIT may rectify such default and pursue a claim against the Consultant for any direct costs associated with any such remediation, including a reasonable allowance for the use of the CITY OF IQALUIT's own employees or equipment.
- 6.4 The Consultant may not assign or delegate work to be done under this contract, or any part thereof, to any other party without the written consent of the CITY OF IQALUIT. In the case of a proposed assignment of monies owing to the Contractor under this contract, the consent in writing of the CITY OF IQALUIT must be obtained.
- 6.5 The Consultant shall keep proper accounts and records of the services for a period of 3 years after the expiry or termination of this agreement. At any time during the term of this contract or during the three years following the completion or termination of this agreement, the Consultant shall produce copies of such accounts and records upon the written request of the CITY OF IQALUIT.
- 6.6 The Consultant shall notify the CITY OF IQALUIT immediately of any claim, action, or other proceeding made, brought, prosecuted or threatened in writing to be brought or prosecuted that is based upon, occasioned by or in any way attributable to the performance or non-performance of the services under this contract.
- 6.7 If at any time the Consultant considers their estimates indicate costs will exceed the project budget, they will immediately advise the City of Iqaluit. If in the opinion of the City of Iqaluit, acting reasonably, the excess is due to design, costs factors or matters under the control or reasonably foreseeable by the Consultant, the CITY OF IQALUIT may require the Consultant to do everything by way of revision of the design to bring the cost estimate within the project budget. Costs of completing such revisions shall be based upon a level of compensation reasonably appropriate to the circumstances, including the reason for the revisions.
- 6.8 Except as required in the performance of services set out in this agreement, the Consultant must maintain as confidential all data and information made available to the Consultant, the CITY OF IQALUIT, or any other parties which is generated by or results from the Consultant's performance of the Services described in this Contract. All such data and information is the property of the City of Iqaluit. This clause shall survive the termination of the Contract.

7. TERMINATION





- 7.1 The CITY OF IQALUIT may terminate this contract at any time upon giving written notice to this effect to the Consultant if, in the opinion of the CITY OF IQALUIT, the Consultant is unable to deliver the service as required, the Consultant's performance of work is persistently faulty, in the event that the Consultant becomes insolvent or commits an act of bankruptcy, in the event that any actual or potential labor dispute delays or threatens to delay timely performance of the contract or the (Consultant Contractor) defaults or fails to observe the terms and conditions of the contract in any material respect.
- 7.2 This contract shall terminate as of the day for termination set out in the written notice and the Consultant shall forthwith invoice the CITY OF IQALUIT for work performed to the date of termination.
- 7.3 Any invoice submitted by the Consultant pursuant to clause 7.2 shall be reviewed by the CITY OF IQALUIT to assess the amount which is properly due and owing for work done by the Contractor prior to termination.

8. FINANCIAL

- The CITY OF IQALUIT, having given written notice of a breach, may withhold or hold back in whole or in part any payment due the Consultant without penalty, expense or liability, if in the opinion of the Contracting Authority, the Consultant has failed to comply with or has in any way breached an obligation of the consultant. Any such hold back shall continue until the breach has been rectified to the satisfaction of the CITY OF IQALUIT.
- 8.2 The CITY OF IQALUIT may set off any payment due the Consultant against any monies owed by the Consultant to the CITY OF IQALUIT.
- 8.3 The City of Iqaluit will pay the Goods and Services Tax (GST).
- 8.4 Provided all terms and conditions on the part of the Consultant have been complied with, each invoice will be paid thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the invoice, or thirty (30) calendar days after delivery of the services, whichever is later.
- 8.5 The CITY OF IQALUIT may, in order to discharge lawful obligations or to satisfy lawful claims against the Consultant or a Subconsultant arising out of the execution of work, pay any amount, which is due and payable to the Consultant under the contract, if any, directly to the obligee of and the claimants against the Consultant or Subconsultant.

9. INSURANCE AND LIABILITY

- 9.1 The Consultant's liability to the City of Iqaluit for claims arising out of this Agreement, or in any way relating to the Services, will be limited to direct damages and to the re-performance, without additional compensation, of any Services not meeting a normal professional standard of care and such liability will, in the aggregate, not exceed the amount of \$1,000,000.00. The limitations of liability will apply, to the extent permitted by law, whether Consultant's liability arises under breach of contract or warranty; tort, including negligence; strict liability; statutory liability; or any other cause of action, and will extend to and include Consultant's directors, officers, employees, insurers, agents, and sub-consultants.
- 9.2 In no event will either party be liable to the other party for indirect or consequential damages including without limitation loss of use or production, loss of profits or business interruption.





- 9.3 The Consultant shall, without limiting his obligations or liabilities hereto, obtain, maintain, and pay for during the period of this agreement, the following insurance with limits not less than those shown:
 - a) Workers' Compensation insurance covering all employees engaged in the work in accordance with the statutory requirements of the Territory or Province having jurisdiction over such employees. If the Consultant is assessed any additional levy, extra assessment or super-assessment by a Workers' Compensation Board as a result of an accident causing injury or death to an employee of the Consultant or any sub-consultant, or due to unsafe working conditions, then such levy or assessment shall be paid by the Consultant at its sole cost and is not reimbursed by the CITY OF IQALUIT.
 - b) Employer's liability insurance with limits not less than \$500,000 for each accidental injury to or death of the Consultant's employees engaged in the work. If Workers' Compensation insurance exists, then in such event, the aforementioned Employer's Liability insurance shall not be required but the Comprehensive General Liability policy referred to in item (d) herein shall contain an endorsement providing for Contingent Employers' Liability insurance.
 - c) Motor Vehicle, water craft and snow craft standard liability insurance covering all vehicles and/or craft owned or non-owned, operated and/or licensed by the Consultant and used by the Consultant in the performance of this agreement in an amount not less than five million dollars (\$5,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily injury, death and damage to property; and with respect to busses limits of not less than five million dollars (\$5,000,000.00) for vehicle hazards and not less than five million dollars (\$5,000,000.00) for Bodily Injury to or death of one or more passengers and loss of or damage to the passengers property in one accident.)
 - d) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance with limits of not less than ten million dollars (\$10,000,000.00) (inclusive) per occurrence for bodily injury, death and damage to property including loss of use thereof. Such insurance shall include but not be limited to the following terms and conditions:
 - Products & Completed Operations Liability *
 - Consultant's Protective Liability
 - Blanket Contractual Liability
 - Broad Form Property Damage
 - Personal Injury Liability
 - Cross Liability
 - Medical Payments
 - Non-owned Automobile Liability *
 - Contingent Employers Liability *
 - Employees as Additional Insureds *

*WHERE APPLICABLE

e) Professional Liability Insurance with limits of not less than five million dollars (\$5,000,000.00) per claim and ten million dollars (\$10,000,000.00) in the annual aggregate, to cover claims arising out of the rendering of or failure to render any <u>professional service</u> under this contract or agreement.





f) Unmanned aerial vehicle liability insurance with respect to owned or non-owned aircraft (if used directly or indirectly in the performance of the Work), shall have limits of not less than \$5,000,000 per occurrence or accident for bodily injury, death and damage to property or such amounts as required by any applicable law or regulation.

All policies shall provide that thirty days written notice be given to the CITY OF IQALUIT prior to any cancellations of any such policies.

The Comprehensive General Liability Insurance policies shall name the CITY OF IQALUIT and any permitted sub-consultants as additional insureds only with respect to the terms of this contract and shall extend to cover the employees of the insureds hereunder.

The Consultant shall be responsible for any deductibles, exclusions and/or insufficiency of coverage relating to such policies.

The Consultant shall deposit with the CITY OF IQALUIT prior to commencing with the work a certificate of insurance evidencing the insurance(s) required by this clause in a form satisfactory to the CITY OF IQALUIT and with insurance companies satisfactory to the CITY OF IQALUIT.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hand and seals as of the date and year entered below.

FOR THE CITY OF IQALUIT:	FOR THE CONSULTANT:	
Name/Title	Name/Title	
Signature	Signature	
Date	Date	
Witness	Witness	

END OF APPENDIX C





APPENDIX D - SIGNING SHEET

I/We, agree that we have received addenda to inclusive, and the Proposal Pricing includes provisions set out in such addenda.
I/We confirm agreement to conform to the confidentiality requirements as indicated in Supplementary Conditions SC1 – Confidentiality.
I/We confirm agreement to conform to the conflict-of-interest requirements and disclosures as indicated in Supplementary Conditions SC2 – Conflict of Interest.
Signer must have authority to bind the company.
Signed, and delivered at this day of 2023.
Signature of Name (Authorized official or principal who has authority to bind the company)
Legal Company Name
Address: # Street, Municipality, Province/ Territory, Postal Code
Name: Print or Type
Title
Email
Telephone #





END OF APPENDIX D